Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Improving People’s Lives

Corporate Policy Development and

Scrutiny Panel

Date: Tuesday, 17th September, 2024
Time: 4.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber - Guildhall, Bath

Councillors: Robin Moss, Lucy Hodge, lan Halsall, Hal MacFie, Toby Simon,
Malcolm Treby, Colin Blackburn, George Tomlin and Duncan Hounsell

Michaela Gay
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG

Telephone: michaela_gay@bathnes.gov.uk, 01225 394411
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk




NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council’'s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Paper copies are available for inspection at the Guildhall - Bath.

2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by
contacting as above.

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please
make yourself known to the camera operators.

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or guardians
before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to the camera
operator.

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be available
for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Speaking at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings.
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group.

Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting. This
means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be received in Democratic
Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday.

Further details of the scheme can be found at:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942

5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted.
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

6. Supplementary information for meetings

Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505



https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

10.

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel - Tuesday, 17th September, 2024

at 4.00 pm in the Council Chamber - Guildhall, Bath

AGENDA

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out
under Note 6.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.

(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,
(as defined in Part 4.4 Appendix B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for
Registration of Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE STATEMENTS,
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF THIS MEETING

MINUTES (Pages 7 - 12)
CABINET MEMBER UPDATE

The Cabinet Member will update the Panel on any relevant issues. Panel members
may ask questions on the update provided.

2025/26 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (Pages 13 - 52)
PANEL WORKPLAN (Pages 53 - 54)

This report presents the latest workplan for the Panel. Any suggestions for further



items or amendments to the current programme will be logged and scheduled in
consultation with the Panel’s Chair and supporting officers.

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Michaela Gay who can be contacted on
michaela_gay@bathnes.gov.uk, 01225 394411.



Agenda Item 7

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET

MINUTES OF CORPORATE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL
MEETING

Tuesday, 23rd July, 2024

Present:- Councillors Robin Moss, Lucy Hodge, lan Halsall, Toby Simon, Malcolm Treby,
Colin Blackburn, George Tomlin and Duncan Hounsell

Apologies for absence: Councillors: Hal MacFie

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

Councillor Hodge (Vice Chair) chaired the meeting.
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
Councillor MacFie gave his apologies.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Hodge explained that she had a project role related to the Cabinet but had
not contributed to agenda items on the agenda today.

There were no declarations of interest.
TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN
There was none.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE STATEMENTS,
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF THIS MEETING

There were none.
MINUTES

The Panel confirmed the minutes of the previous meeting as a true record and they
were duly signed by the Chair.

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE

Cabinet Member for Economic and Cultural Sustainable Development - Councillor
Paul Roper gave an update which covered the following:

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 23rd July, 2024

Page 5



87

Note: The Corporate Estate falls under this portfolio. The Commercial Estate fall
under the Cabinet Member for Resources, Councillor Mark Elliott.

e Visitor Attractions — the Corporate Estate includes Museums and Art Galleries
which are on target to deliver budgeted numbers. Shop performance is 6% up
and going well.

¢ Roman Baths — visitor enjoyment is stronger than last year and is in the top
1% of attractions worldwide on Trip Advisor.

e Victoria Art Gallery — the roof repairs needed are not structural, only glazing
so the upper gallery engagement space is expected to open in November.

e Corporate Estate — significant work is being done on improving risk
conditions/RAGON surveys/asset conditions surveys/repair and maintenance
programme.

e Working towards the Corporate Landlord Model

e Asset Challenge Framework is being developed, initially with 30 assets
looking at financial performance/alternative uses.

e There are service pressures such as the holding costs for Culverhay site/Post
Office/Lewis House.

Councillor Halsall asked about Marks and Spencer moving to the Debenhams
building. Councillor Elliott, Cabinet Member for Resources, explained that Marks and
Spencer has a long leasehold so it is up to them who replaces them in the building.

Councillor Halsall asked about the Hindu Temple at Culverhay. Councillor Roper,
Cabinet Member Economic and Cultural Sustainable Development, explained that it
was always known that they would need to leave the site. During the demolition, we
can leave their building in situ and any relocation would be arranged to fit religious
dates. They may have use of a temporary site. We have advised them to get
professional advice. When the outline plan for the site is finalised, we will be able to
see if there is spare space onsite.

Councillor Blackburn asked if we check when tenants carry out their mitigation work.
The Cabinet Member stated that he would check back on this, he added that he
understood that there would be a complete estate wide review.

Councillor Moss asked if we could make sure a tenant is able to do necessary repair
work. He added that it would be useful to see a list in terms of the Asset Challenge
Framework. Councillor Moss asked if it was possible to swap the paintings in the
Guildhall with those in storage.

In response to a query from Councillor Halsall, the Cabinet Member stated that he
would look at the figure regarding lost revenue with regard to works being carried out
at Victoria Art Gallery. Councillor Simon pointed out that the upper floor was never
chargeable.

The Chair thanked the Cabinet Members.

2023/24 OUTTURN REPORT

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 23rd July, 2024

Page 6



88

Cabinet Member for Resources - Councillor Mark Elliott — introduced the item. He
explained that the year was finished essentially in balance which is something to be
celebrated. There was a lot of variance between departments and some mitigating
actions have been taken.

Panel members made the following points and asked the following questions:

Councillor Treby asked for information on how the gap regarding the Capital
Programme can be addressed in the future. The Cabinet Member explained that it
was improving this year and some areas are managing to deliver more then before
such as the Highways Improvement Programme. The aim is to reduce the gap.

Councillor Blackburn asked about the underspend with regard to Western Riverside.
The officer explained that this was related to the public realm following the removal
of an old bridge. There was some funding from WECA (West of England Combined
Authority) which released Council funding.

Councillor Tomlin asked about the overspend regarding elections costs. The officer
explained that General Election costs are covered by the Government and the
Council funds local elections — on this occasion costs were higher than the amount
that had built up.

In response to a query from Councillor Hodge about mitigations, the Cabinet
Member explained that Capital Programme investments had been slowed, vacancies
held and costs on care home agency staff had reduced. Also some contingency
funds had been used.

Councillor Hodge asked about the overspend on home to school transport. The
Cabinet Member explained that the budget had been rebased and was not showing
any problems this year. The Heritage budget had also been rebased based on a
positive last year.

Councillor Hodge asked about the capital underspend and about steps in place for
more capital delivery. The Cabinet Member explained that there had been a
restructuring of Corporate Services which has been centralised with the aim of
improving delivery.

The Chair thanked the Cabinet Member.

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING, CASH LIMITS AND
VIREMENTS - APRIL 2024 TO JUNE 2024

Cabinet Member for Resources - Councillor Mark Elliott — introduced the item. He
explained that the pressures regarding Children’s Services showed no sign of
abating. Another area of pressure has been the operation of the Council’s estate —
assets are being brought back into use where appropriate. He stated that there had
also been pressure in Waste Services due to the use/cost of agency staff. He
explained that he regularly meets with the relevant Cabinet Member and Head of
Service to better understand budget pressures and to look at mitigations.

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 23rd July, 2024

Page 7



89

Panel members made the following points and asked the following questions:

Councillor Simon stated that the Council Tax Reduction Scheme was broadly on
budget which was good considering it had been a significant change. He suggested
that the Panel look at the scheme again in the future.

Councillor Hounsell asked about the wording around the dual running of Waste
depots. The Cabinet Member explained that there was an overlap while waste
management services moved to a centralised service. It is not expected that this will
be repeated.

In response to a query from Councillor Halsall regarding the ‘safety valve’, the
Cabinet Member explained that it refers to the school’s budget, part of which is
ringfenced and paid for by the schools grant and there is a statutory override. The
Council is a delivery mechanism between the Government and schools.

Councillor Hounsell stated that overspends are concerning and asked if robust
conversations are being held with Service Directors. The Cabinet Member assured
the Panel that this is happening

The Chair stated that the Panel would like a future update on two areas in particular
— the use of agency staff in Waste Services and the measures to address the
maintenance and refurbishment of the Commercial Estate (Panel agreement).

The Chair thanked the Cabinet Member

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

Cabinet Member for Resources - Councillor Mark Elliott — introduced the item.

Panel members made the following points and asked the following questions:

Councillor Halsall stated that it was positive that the CQC had rated most Council
care homes as ‘good’. He stated that in terms of the report, it would be useful to
know comparisons with previous years.

Councillor Hounsell agreed that it would be useful to see values over a period of time
rather than a promotional report. He asked about ‘Clean and Green’ weeks which no
longer happen. The Cabinet Member stated that the intention is to imbed this work in
the regular round of work for the team.

Councillor Hounsell stated that there were disappointing figures on resident
satisfaction. He asked how the Communications Team could help to address the gap
between achievement and perception. The Cabinet Member agreed, he stated that
our value for money is good but that there is a gap between public perception and
reality. It is ok to have legitimate criticism. He agreed there could be more impact
from Communications which has recently been restructured.

Councillor Treby echoed the plea for a document that would allow more effective
scrutiny (either offline or online). He stated that the Panel need to see Amber
markers and plans to bring them back on track eg. Renewable energy. The Cabinet

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 23rd July, 2024

Page 8



Member stated that he was happy to take this feedback away. He stated that the
Cabinet have recently considered revised PI's which can be shared.

Councillor Blackburn agreed that context information was needed in order that the
Panel can do its work.

Councillor Moss asked if any analysis was done on the comments that come in after
press releases. The Cabinet Member stated that he was not aware of any analysis of
social media, he stated that there was a lot of negativity from a small percentage of
people.

Councillor Simon agreed that the red/amber/green system was useful to monitor
plans.

Councillor Hodge stated that the Panel have asked for this information before and
there are no changes to how the numbers are presented. She proposed that the
issue is taken outside of this meeting so certain indicators can be focused on (Panel
agreement).
The Chair thanked the Cabinet Member.

90 PANEL WORKPLAN
The Panel noted their future workplan and the following suggestions for future items:

Councillor Simon — New Library IT contract/Council Tax Reduction Scheme

Councillor Treby — City Centre Security Scheme Review

The meeting ended at 5.30 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Tuesday, 23rd July, 2024
Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda Item 9

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | Corporate Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel

MEETING: | 17th September 2024

TITLE: 2025/26 Medium Term Financial Strategy

WARD: All

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Appendix 1: Medium Term Financial Strategy 2025/26 Cabinet Report

1 THEISSUE

1.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy was considered by the Cabinet at their 12t
September 2024 meeting. It sets out the strategic direction and priorities for the
Council as well as outlining the financial context and challenges the Council
faces over the next five years.

2 RECOMMENDATION

The Panel is asked to;

2.1 Note and discuss the Medium Term Financial Strategy.
3 THE REPORT

3.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy 2025/26 — 2029/30 Cabinet report and
supporting appendices is included as the appendices to this paper and for Panel
consideration.

3.2 The report sets out the current financial challenge, strategic direction and
financial priorities for the Council, as well as the financing mechanisms available
to the Council to achieve this. The key sections of the report for Corporate Policy
Development and Scrutiny to review and discuss are:

e Section 5 — The Current financial position 2024/25
e Section 6 — The Drivers of Demand
e Section 8 — Council Tax

e Section 9 & 10 — The Financial outlook and managing the strategy

e Section 11 — Corporate Strategy and Council priorities
Printed on recycled paper Page 11



3.3 The final detail of the budget will need to be informed by the Chancellors budget
statement on 30" October 2024 and the 2025/26 provisional settlement from
Government to Councils. Whilst we are expecting the full detail in December the
estimates in the strategy are largely based on a rollover funding package for
2025/26 given the current national fiscal constraints.

3.4 The focus is on the delivery of the second year of a two-year balanced budget
agreed in February 2024, whilst recognising new and emerging risks that may
require further action and development of new savings and income plans. At this
stage uncertainty remains for next year following a change in government with
Council financial settlements currently under review. The MTFS assumes that
despite significant cuts in previous years funding, constraints will continue and
will therefore be guided by the priority areas of service delivery as set out in the
Corporate Strategy.

3.5 We will be making more information available on our budget plans following the
budget announcement and provisional settlement and this will also be subject to
scrutiny by the Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 The annual Medium Term Financial Strategy and planning process allocates
resources across services with alignment of these resources towards the
Council’s corporate priorities.

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)
5.1 These are contained throughout the attached report and appendices.
6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management
guidance.

6.2 The Medium Term Financial Strategy includes a section on specific risks.
7 CLIMATE CHANGE

7.1 This is an information only report about the Council’s Medium Term Financial
Strategy, it therefore does not include any decisions that have a direct impact on
Climate Change.

8 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
8.1 None
9 CONSULTATION

9.1 The Cabinet Member for Resources has been consulted on the drafting of the
MTFS report as well as the Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer.

Printed on recycled paper Page 12



Contact person

Andy Rothery, Executive Director - Resources (S151 Officer)
(01225 477103)

Gary Adams, Head of Financial Management (01225 477107)

Background
papers

2024/25 Revenue and Capital Budget Setting reports,
2023/24 Revenue and Capital Outturn Report,

2024/25 Quarter 1 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring.

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an

alternative format

Printed on recycled paper

Page 13




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING | Cabinet
EXECUTIVE FORWARD
PLAN REFERENCE:
II\DAE.E;NG 12 September 2024
- E 3564
TITLE: 2025/26 Medium Term Financial Strategy
WARD: All

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 — Medium Term Financial Strategy

Appendix 2:

(i) 2025/26 to 2027/28 Budget Savings and Income proposals & (ii)

2025/26 to 2027/28 Funding Requirements.

1 THE ISSUE

1.1

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) sets out the strategic
direction and priorities for the Council as well as outlining the financial
context and challenges the Council faces over the next five years and the
strategy that will be used to inform its annual budget process.

2 RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet is asked to;

2.1

Approve the attached Medium Term Financial Strategy in Appendix 1.

3 THE REPORT

3.1

3.2

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) provides the framework for
strategic planning, articulating the organisation’s key aims and ambitions
and guiding our activities with medium term budget setting and planning.
This sets out the current financial challenge, strategic direction and
financial priorities for the Council, as well as the financing mechanisms
available to the Council to achieve this.

The MTFS models future years funding requirement for the Council’s
revenue budget and identifies where there are income shortfalls that
require new savings plans. The strategy sets out the approach to address
funding gaps prior to budget setting and the associated risks. Due to the
financial challenges the Council faces, the MTFS sets out the strategic
management options based on the high level planning assumptions used
in the MTFS budget forecast.
age 15




3.3 The focus is on the delivery of the second year of a two-year balanced
budget, as presented to Council in February 2024, whilst recognising new
and emerging risks that may require further action and development of
new savings and income plans. At this stage uncertainty remains for next
year following a change in government with Council financial settlements
currently under review. The MTFS assumes that despite significant cuts in
previous years funding, constraints will continue and will therefore be
guided by the priority areas of service delivery as set out in the Corporate
Strategy.

STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy as outlined is part of the preparation
for the budget and Council Tax setting for 2025/26 which will be
considered by this Council in February 2025. Equality analysis will be
carried out on specific budget proposals as part of that process.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

5.1 The resource implications are outlined within the Medium Term Financial
Strategy attached to this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk
management guidance.

6.2 The Medium Term Financial Strategy includes a section on specific risks.
CLIMATE CHANGE

7.1 The Corporate Strategy highlights that “Addressing the Climate
Emergency” is one of the key themes reflected in the administration’s
priorities. This includes plans to work with local communities to deliver the
Council resolution agreed in March 2019 to declare a climate emergency,
and for the area to become carbon neutral by 2030.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
8.1 The supporting paper outlines options for balancing future budgets.
CONSULTATION

9.1 A consultation plan is being prepared to ensure stakeholder engagement
for the key aspects of the strategy and this will take place in the autumn
period, including engagement sessions.

Contact person Andy Rothery, Executive Director - Resources (S151 Officer) —

01225 477103;

andy rothery@bathnes.gov.uk

Gary Adams, Head of Financial Management — 01225 477107
Gary Adams@baBamss I®v.uk



mailto:andy_rothery@bathnes.gov.uk
mailto:Gary_Adams@bathnes.gov.uk

Background Budget and Council Tax 2024/25 and Financial Outlook —
papers Council Agenda February 2024

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Page 17




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Appendix 1 - Bath & North East Somerset — Medium Term Financial Strategy
2025/26 - 2029/30

1. Purpose of the Strategy

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) provides a budget setting framework
which details the available resources for strategic financial planning, articulating the
organisation’s key aims and ambitions and guiding our activities with medium term
budget setting and planning.

The MTFS will model the future years funding requirement for the Council’s revenue
budget and identify where there are income shortfalls that require new savings
plans. The strategy will set out the approach to address funding gaps prior to
budget setting and the associated risks. Due to the current financial challenges the
Council faces the MTFS sets out strategic management options based on the high-
level planning assumptions in section 9.

The focus is on the delivery of the second year of a two-year balanced budget whilst
recognising new and emerging risks that may require further action and
development of new savings and income plans. At this stage uncertainly remains
for next year following a change in government with Council financial settlements
currently under review. The MTFS assumes that despite significant cuts in previous
years funding, constraints will continue and will therefore be guided by the priority
areas of service delivery as set out in the Corporate Strategy.

2. Expected Outcomes from the Strategy

The objective of this document is to publish existing Council agreed plans and set
the future years strategic resourcing plan; recognising the resourcing requirement
to meet the administration’s priorities to deliver the 2023 — 2027 Corporate Strategy
for the Council, whilst maintaining a balanced budget over the next five years.

A balanced budget requires the financial plan to set out how income will equal
spend over the short and medium term. Plans will take into account cost savings
alongside income growth strategies as well as useable reserves.

Operating and funding the Council in a post Covid economic environment with
constrained national public finances due to continued low economic growth
continues to be challenging, the Council is impacted due to services being exposed
to either people or contract inflation, alongside the additional demands on
Children’s and Adult Social Care. The Council has responded to this challenge over
the past three years and in 2023/24 ended the financial year in a balanced position
after transfers from reserves of £0.13m. The strategy focusses on how this
approach can be adopted in the current and future years addressing the short,
medium and long-term financial planning requirements.

3. Executive Summary and recommendations from the MTFS for consideration
The overall aim of the Medium Term Financial Strategy is to:

e Set out and deliver the Councﬁ;gg%riggities within affordable and sustainable
financial constraints;



e Ensure that the administration’s (Council’s) strategic priorities are reflected in its
capital programme and also that the capital programme is affordable;

e Ensure that cash flows are adequately planned so that cash is available when
required and the Council can meet its capital spending obligations; and

e Set a sound financial planning framework to underpin the effective financial
management of the Council.

There is a continued lack of clarity around future funding for Local Government,
however this will be informed by the Chancellor’'s budget statement on 30" October
2024. This will set out the Governments revised spending plans for 2024/25 and
2025/26, with a further 3-year Spending Review covering 2026/27 to 2028/29 now
planned to be announced in the Spring of 2025. The announcements will set
Government Department budgets, informing the Local Government settlement that
will be announced in December. The estimates within this Strategy are largely
based on a rollover funding package for 2025/26 given the current national fiscal
constraints. Members will be provided with an update once the future funding
position is known following the budget announcements.

Despite this uncertainty the Council still needs to plan its finances for the medium
to longer term and therefore the Strategy is based on best estimates at this stage.
The Council has a good track record in savings delivery, in 2023/24 the budget had
a savings requirement of £14.38m, against this target the Council delivered savings
of £11.55m (80%) with the balance either rephased to 2024/25 or addressed
through the budget setting proposals. As a result of the ongoing budget challenge
the 2024/25 budget requires the delivery of £16.42m in savings and income
generation plans.

The MTFS base case as set out in the report (section 9) estimates that the Council
will need to find up to £28.60m (including the £13.34m already identified) in savings
over the next five years. This is based on the assumption that Council tax increases
are capped at 3.99% for the five year period 2025/26 to 2029/30. This consists of a
general increase of 1.99% and an Adult Social Care Precept increase of 2%.

The main contributing factor that is driving the budget gap is sustained inflation and
the higher interest rates due to cost-of-living, these impact the Council’s running
costs as well as the supply chain for external provision. In addition, the Council
continues to see demand and activity rise for essential Social Care services, which
is compounded by high market costs and a reliance on out of area provision.

In the shorter term the profile of the savings shows a requirement of £15.98m over
the next two years (£8.41m of planned savings in 2025/26, followed by £7.57m in
2026/27, of which there are planned savings of £2.44m).

To manage this risk section 10 of the report sets out the savings range and the level
that has been used for planning purposes.

To manage financial risk the Council holds £12.58m of unearmarked reserves, this
is reviewed annually as part of the Council’s budget proposal where the S151
Officer carries out an assessment of budget risk and reserve levels to manage
these risks.

The Council holds Revenue Budget Contingency and Financial Planning /
Smoothing reserves that enable onepgfjdrapsitional funding to meet revenue costs.
Over the life of the MTFS these reserves when drawn down will be replenished to



ensure financial resilience and availability for future years budgets. These reserves
are replenished within the five year MTFS period. Flexible capital receipts will
continue to be utilised to fund severance costs that result in delivering ongoing
savings, this use will be in line with the revised government guidance covering the
period until the end of the 2025/26 financial year.

Capital spending will focus on the delivery of priority schemes within affordability
levels, the 2024/25 Capital programme is being reviewed to ensure the most
accurate delivery timetable, resulting in a more accurate budget profile.

As part of delivering this strategy plans are being put in place to engage with all
elected members, partners and the public as part of the budget process for 2025/26
and the following years.

4. The Medium Term Financial Strategy

The MTFS outlines the factors which are expected to drive future costs and sets out
the funding projections and our strategy for addressing the funding gap. It supports the
medium term policy and financial planning process at the heart of setting revenue and
capital budgets.

The core principles underlying the MTFS are as follows:

e That the Council will seek to maintain a sustainable financial position over the
course of the planning period and balance the budget on a two year rolling
programme;

e That the Council will make provision for pressures, demographic changes, and
inflation where appropriate with new priorities added only if “headroom” is
achieved;

e The deployment of the Council’s limited resources will be focused towards
essential services and those that contribute to the delivery of the Corporate
Strategy, tackling the Climate Emergency and giving residents a bigger say.

e Council tax increases have been included within the term of the MTFS to
support essential services.

¢ New sustainable income opportunities are to be identified and maximised

wherever possible while maintaining current income streams through current
economic uncertainty.

Page 21



5. The Current Financial Position

2023/24 Outturn

The Council delivered an adverse outturn position of £0.13m as follows:

Toveed | outum | Vaanes

£m (Under)

£m

Leader of Council (0.21) (0.26) (0.05)
Climate Emergency and Sustainable Travel 1.48 1.35 (0.13)
Council Priorities and Delivery 7.91 7.60 (0.31)
Resources 6.02 1.74 (4.28)
Economic and Cultural Sustainable Development (1.58) (3.92) (2.34)
Adult Services 66.87 68.26 1.39
Children's Services 41.09 46.14 5.05
Highways (0.37) (2.06) (1.69)
Neighbourhood Services 25.95 27.65 1.70
Built Environment and Sustainable Development 2.84 3.28 0.44
Total (before Carry Forwards) 150.00 149.79 (0.21)
Carry Forward Requests (underspends) 0.34
Total (including Carry Forwards) 0.13

The £0.13m overspend was funded by a transfer from the Revenue Budget
Contingency Reserve, which is used to fund unbudgeted revenue pressures which are
unable to be mitigated by management and recovery actions.

Budget 2024/25

The 2024/25 net budget of £135.85m was approved by Council in February 2024.
Quarter 1 budget monitoring to the end of June, shows a projected overspend of
£3.95m against the revised budget of £136.22m as shown below.

Current monitoring highlights the continued impact of demand pressures on Council

services, which have continued to increase since budgets were approved in February
2024.

Page 22



Revised Year Variance
Portfolio Budget End bl
£'m Forecast | (Under)
£°m £m
Leader of Council (0.30) (0.31) (0.01)
Climate Emergency and Sustainable Travel 1.27 1.22 (0.05)
Council Priorities and Delivery 2.88 2.85 (0.03)
Resources 15.83 15.31 (0.52)
Economic and Cultural Sustainable Development (6.84) (5.30) 1.54
Adult Services 60.82 60.83 0.01
Children's Services 35.95 38.42 2.47
Highways (1.77) (2.39) (0.62)
Neighbourhood Services 25.87 26.97 1.10
Built Environment and Sustainable Development 2.51 2.57 0.06
Quarter 1 Forecast Outturn Variance 136.22 140.18 3.95

The main overspend is in Children’s Services where demand-led placement and
package costs continue to cause a significant pressure with the service currently
forecasting a £2.47m over budget position.

Further pressures are being experienced in the Corporate Estate, Waste Services and
the Regeneration Service. There is also demand pressure in Adult Social Care which
are being financed by a forecast £1m transfer from the Adult Social Care Reserve.
High levels of vacancies across the organisation, strong performance in Parking
Services, and increased interest on cash balances and lower capital financing costs
due to capital programme re-profiling are providing favourable mitigations.

Directors are actively developing mitigation plans for the service areas which are in an
over budget position, identified above, to manage this position in year and bring the
Council back into a balanced position. Mitigations will be reported through the quarter
2 monitoring to Cabinet. In the event the above budget position cannot be fully
mitigated the Council’s Revenue Budget Contingency Reserve and unearmarked
reserves will need to be utilised, subject to approval. Should this be required there
would be a requirement to replenish these reserves in future years, putting further
pressure on meeting the medium-term budget gaps.

Analysis of Current Position

Local Government has built its budget plans based on continued fiscal constraints and
reductions in revenue support grant funding that have occurred over the past decade
or so.

The Council’s revenue support grant has reduced from £31m in 2013/14 to £0.8m per
annum in 2024/25, as a result we have become more reliant on external income to help
fund core Council services.

6. Drivers of Demand

The Economic outlook

The post pandemic UK economy made a good recovery leading to an increase in
activity, this created a shortage of supply at an international level resulting in a rise in
inflation. In addition, the war in Ukraine impacted on energy supply and price that drove
inflation to its highest level since the 1970’s.

Page 23



The diagram below shows that there was no growth in monthly real gross domestic
product (GDP) in June 2024, following growth of 0.4% in May 2024.

Monthly index, January 2007 to June 2024, UK

INQex, Lu19 = 10U
110 !

105
100
95
S0

85

80
75

70

o 1

Jun2008  Jun2010  Jun2012  Jun2014  Jun2016  Jun2018  Jun2020  |un2022  jun2024

Source: Office for National Statistics - Monthly GDP

The chart below shows the monthly sector movements contributing to the changes in
UK GDP with overall monthly movements ranging between +0.75% and -0.5% over the
past year. This highlights that there has been more volatility in the service industry.

Contributions to monthly GDP growth, June 2023 to June 2024, UK

GDP @) Services @ Production @ Construction

Percentage points (%)

0.75

0.5

0.25

-0.25
-0.5

-0.75
Jun 2023 Aug 2023 Oct 2023 Dec 2023 Feb 2024 Apr 2024 Jun 2024

Source: GDP monthly estimate from the Office for National Statistics

Page 24



The Consumer Prices Index (CPI) rose by 2.2% in the 12 months to July 2024,
compared with a rise of 2% in the period to June. On a monthly basis, CPI fell by 0.2%
in July 2024, compared with a fall of 0.4% in July 2023.

The previous high levels of inflation have impacted on the cost of running the Council
and its budgets resulting in an increase in staffing costs for employed and contracted
employees, also on its supplies and services provided through contracts. Pay and
contract inflation estimates have been refreshed to take into account the economic
outlook.

The make up by sector in the movement in CPI can be found in the graph below.

Contributions to the annual Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation rate,

UK, July 2022 to July 2024

L J Food and non-alcoholic beverages o Alcohol and tobacco
o Clothing and footwear ® Housing and household services

Furniture and household goods o Transport o Recreation and culture
® Restaurants and hotels ® Other goods and services

CPI 12-month inflation rate

Percentage points

-3
Jul 2022 Nov 2022 Mar 2023 Jul 2023 Nov 2023 Mar 2024 Jul 2024

Source: Consumer price inflation from the Office for National Statistics

The Bank of England base interest rate increased from 0.10% during March 2020 to
5.25% on the 21 September 2023 where it remained until a 0.25% rate cut to 5.00%
was agreed in August 2024. This has an impact on public works loan board (PWLB)
interest rate for borrowing required to fund the Council’s capital programme.

Page 25



Official Bank of England Interest rate

[}
=
v}
v
==
c
©
[aa]

2010

== Bank Rate

The graph below shows the latest PWLB interest rates trend:

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) - Loan interest rates % - Aug 22 to Aug 24

6.00
N
/ i N
5.00 ‘ ’
! -
| by
\
[ n
400 Y
3.00
2.00
1.00
TV T T S 1 A R N & PN & > w
AP A LT | R | R P R P N P B S A B &
& & S S S N I I K N N L Y SION R S R AR I A §
R R R R G VR G Gl S O A s S U S S S o N S P o S S
F S S T P P P PP T ISP IS, ST T F S
NSO S SR R A G S G S G G SO S A R S S S RS S A S L A

@15 Year Annuity Loan 30 Year Annuity Loan 50 Year Annuity Loan

For new Capital borrowing scheme affordability is being calculated with a 5% cost of
capital rate.

Page 26



Economic impact on the Councils income budgets

Current performance for the Council’s main income generating services are below:

Culture & Heritage Services Income

Culture and Heritage Services income budgets are largely driven by visitor numbers to
the Roman Baths. The budget for 2024/25 was set at 1,100,000 visitors, 92% of the
pre-pandemic footfall.

Footfall over the first quarter of the financial year was slightly down on this budget, this
was driven by the early Easter and very poor weather during April. Despite being
slightly down on budget, visitor numbers were 4% up on prior year during Q1 and 7%
up in July.

In 2023/24 Culture and Heritage Services exceeded pre-COVID income and the chart
below shows that the Service anticipates 2024/25 surpassing this total and delivering
the highest income and surplus that the Service has ever returned to the Council.

Roman Baths Cumulative Admission Income

£25,000,000

£5,000,000

£0

— 202425 forecast  ———— 0025 24  — (7223 e e 207920

Parking Services Income

Prior to the pandemic, the Parking Services income budget was c£12m. For 2023/24
the service income budget was £12.6m, this has increased to £13.7m in 2024/25. This
factored in the continued increased income, but also built in revenue associated with
new Residential Parking Zones (RPZs) and emissions-based charging and planned
price rises. The service is currently projecting an overall year end £0.34m favourable
position due to the continued strong performance of all parking locations, with a positive
performance during the first quarter of 2024/25.

Page 27



Parking Services 24/25 Anticipated Revenue Impact

16,000

14,000

12,000

10,000

Cummulative Revenue £000's
om =]

§

:

=}

Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Now-24 Dec-24 lan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25

w2425 Budget e 24,25 Forecast/ Actual —23{24 Budget

Demand Led Services - Social Care

Adult Social Care

The Council has sought to set realistic and deliverable budgets through the MTFS and
budgeting process. Significant resource has been added to Adult and Children’s
services over the last few years whilst both services have delivered other savings and
efficiency gains.

The MTFS assumes that the Social Care funding included in the 2024/25 settlement
will continue throughout the MTFS period, this is made up as follows:

Grant B&NES Allocation
Social Care support grant £13.25m
iBCF Grant £4.9m

The iBCF grant is part of the pooled budget with the NHS Bath and North East
Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW) Integrated Care Board (ICB) and ring-fenced
to exclusively fund Adult Social Care.

The challenges facing Adult Social Care (ASC) nationally as well as locally continue
and include factors such as increasing demand, both in activity and complexity,
capacity to deliver required care, Inflationary pressures and market stability issues in
the independent sector. These challenges are impacting all ASC users and carers.
Continued funding has been received in 2024/25 from the Adults Social Care
Discharge Grant (£1.1m). This grant was distributed through the Better Care Fund and
is expected again in 2025/26, assumed at the same level. Funding for Market
Sustainability of £3.2m was also received from the Market Sustainability and
Improvement Fund and this is expected again in 2025/26, assumed at the same level.

The MTFS allocates £11.6m for demographic and contract inflation pressures within
ASC over the next five years, service demand levels are being reviewed and the
current trend has shown that caseload is back to activity levels previously seen.
Complexity of need and provider costs Bf’fg; 8Qé‘ginuing to increase.



Children’s Social Care

As demonstrated from the graph below Children’s Services expenditure has not been
manageable within the budget envelope. Rebasing exercises were previously
completed for the services budgets, however the service continues to see increasing
cost and numbers of children in care, in addition to the increasing costs of supporting
disabled children at home. The number of children looked after (LAC) by the Council
is currently 219 . This number includes 21 that are classed as Unaccompanied Asylum
Seeking Children (UASC). The MTFS allocates £7.7m for demographic and
contractual inflationary pressures within Children’s Services over the next five years.

£gm Children's Social Care Demand Budget and Spend

28.0
26.0
24.0
22.0
20.0
18.0
16.0
14.0
12.0
10.0

8.0
2021/22  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

=—@=—Budget e=@==Spend

A further area of pressure within Children’s Services is the significant increases in
children and young people with Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND). This
is adding to the pressure on the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) managed by the
Council. The 2023/24 outturn resulted in a DSG cumulative overspend of £22.26m.
The overspend of the DSG in year in 2023/24 was £8.81m. The historical deficit and in
year overspends are being addressed via the Safety Valve project in conjunction with
the Department for Education (DfE) over a 6 year period. In 2022/23, the first payment
from the DfE of £7.68m was received and a further payment in 2023/24 of £0.55m has
been received. A revised plan was requested by the DfE during 2023/24, this has been
submitted and is awaiting agreement. The overspend is recorded as a specific
unusable reserve in the Local Authority (LA) accounts.

Children’s Services are very cognizant of the continued financial pressure that is
resultant from the expense of providing appropriate care and placements to meet the
needs of our children and young people. The service will continue to review the models
of care we utilise, opportunities to bring in external investment and good practice, and
to scrutinise individual needs and placement costs in order to mitigate these financial
pressures wherever possible.

One particular area of focus will be on how packages of care are commissioned as
current practice is disjointed and not in line with best practice across local government.
There are also challenges around the quality of data which is being addressed as this
will help us to make more effective decisions for service users.

Page 29



7. Outlook for Government Grant Funding

Revenue Support Grant (RSG)

It is anticipated that there will be continued delays in the planned Fairer Funding
Review following the recent change in Government and that the Council will continue
to receive the Revenue Support Grant (RSG) in 2025/26 of £0.8m based on a cash flat
settlement for local government for 2025/26. The remaining RSG allocated to B&NES
has been rolled into the 100% Business Rate Pilot.

Services Grant

The Council received £0.17m from this grant in 2024/25. The MTFS assumes that the
Council will receive the same level of funding in 2025/26 in line with the current
predictions of a cash flat rollover settlement. There is a potential risk to this funding
level if the government decides to distribute the funding in a different way or reduces
the level of funding for 2025/26. The funding position will be confirmed in the December
Provisional settlement.

New Homes Bonus

The Local Government Finance Settlement for 2024/25 confirmed continuation of the
changes made to the funding arrangements for New Homes Bonus over the past 4
years, pending consultation on a replacement scheme. This resulted in a payment of
£0.327m for new housing growth over the previous year. The settlement announced
that the grant element for 2024/25 would only be paid for one year without the further
3 years of legacy payments which are made for growth rewarded in 2019/20 and prior
years.

The table below shows that the MTFS treats the 2024/25 grant payment as one-off
with no further grant anticipated reflecting the potential ending of the scheme in
2025/26.

Total New Homes Bonus Grant
Payment relating 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
to: £'m £'m £'m
2024/25 0.327
2023/24 0.425
Total 0.425 0.327 0.000

Retained Local Business Rates — 100% Business Rate Retention Pilot

The 2024/25 Local Government Finance Settlement confirmed that the West of
England 100% Business Rate Retention Pilot would continue into 2024/25. The
estimated benefit is approximately £3.2m in 2024/25. The MTFS currently reflects the
risk that this benefit could be removed as part of the 2026/27 financial settlement, with
the Council reverting to the national funding scheme following the Local Government
Financing and Fairer Funding review by the government. It is unlikely that these
reforms will take place before 2026/27 due to the time needed by the new Government
to develop and review options for change and also to carry out the necessary
consultation on the impacts of any proposals.

The 2024/25 Budget included assumptions for likely levels of future Business Rate
income, together with making specific pteg&sidhs for appeals, increases in reliefs and



growth and deletions. Business Rate bills are normally uplifted each year based on the
September CPI figures. If the government decides to protect businesses from this level
of increase through capping charges it would normally fully compensate Council’s for
the impact on retained business rate income. The 2025/26 Business Rate income
forecasts currently allows for an inflationary increase of 2% whilst confirmation of the
government’s decision on charge increases and funding for next year is awaited. These
assumptions will be kept under review as the final budget is developed. Any surplus or
deficit on the Business Rate Collection Fund and associated income will be transferred
to or from the Business Rates Reserve for consideration as part of the Business Rates
calculations for future years. This approach will include any changes that arise from
the final settlement announcement relating to Business Rates.

Business Rates collection fund

The MTFS factors in the increased 2023/24 actual Business Rates collection fund
outturn position of £5.34m which is released in 2025/26. The one-off surplus will be
transferred to earmarked reserves to provide £3m cover for the one-off costs of
implementing the “Being our Best Programme” with a revised pay offer and new
structures. The balance of £2.34m will be allocated to the transformation reserve for
costs associated with service redesign and systems improvement projects that deliver
service efficiencies and savings. This forecast will be reviewed and updated to take
account of the 2024/25 in year performance of the Collection Fund as part of finalising
the Business Rates income forecasts for the 2025/26 budget.

Schools Funding

Schools are funded through the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) which is initially
allocated to the Council by the Department for Education (DfE). The DSG supports all
expenditure in schools (who set their own budgets) and the activities that the Council
carries out directly for schools. It does not cover the statutory responsibilities the
Council has towards parents. These responsibilities are funded through the Councils
main revenue funding and included as part of the proposed budget.

As schools convert to academies the DfE take back the element of DSG payable to the
local authority in order to make payments direct to the academies.

For the 2025/26 financial year the DfE have yet to provide the provisional allocations
of DSG increases. Normally these are provided in July but, due to the timing of the
election, the DfE have delayed any announcements on the DSG allocations. It is
anticipated that the information will be made during September. The DfE have made
announcements of a new core schools grant allocation to provide both schools and the
local authority with additional funding to support the recently announced pay award for
teachers. The grant increase is passported to schools in a formulaic approach and the
grant is usually rolled into the National Funding Formula (NFF) allocations for schools
in the following financial year. It is anticipated that the schools allocation will include
this new grant in 2025/26.

With the introduction of the NFF the DSG was ring-fenced for schools from 2018/19
making the local authority responsible for the demographic pressures being observed
in the SEND / High Needs element of the DSG. In 2022/23 the local authority signed a
safety valve agreement with the DfE to agree a plan to recover the deficit in the High
Needs Block of the DSG with support from the DfE. During 2023/24 due to continued
pressure on the finances of the High Needs Block the DfE placed the LA in enhanced
monitoring and required the LA to develop a revised plan to recover the deficit. A new
plan was submitted to the DfE in May Zp%et}g& as yet feedback from the DfE has been
limited and we await formal feedback.



The deficit recovery plan shows our proposals to review our processes to encourage
schools to develop early support for pupils with SEND thus limiting the need for
Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs). We are also creating more localised
provision to limit expenditure on expensive non maintained special school places. The
Education Capital Programme has been utilised to direct resources to provide
additional SEND places in mainstream schools and extend special school provision.

We have also successfully bid for a new Special School, to be built under the free
school programme. We have also bid for a new Alternative Provision school under the
same programme and we await to hear the outcome.

As part of the recovery, the schools were asked to contribute resources from schools
allocations to support the SEND expenditure. Regulations allow up to 0.5% of the
schools block to be transferred to the high needs block to support the SEND
expenditure providing approval of schools through the Schools forum is obtained. The
Schools forum has agreed this transfer every year up to 2024/25.

The school’s contributions are limited to 1 year under the NFF regulations and therefore
further consultation is currently underway to gain a transfer from the schools block in
2025/26. This continues the transfers that have occurred in prior years, and would
amount to approx. £670Kk.

When schools convert to academies their reserves transfer to them and therefore
school reserves have reduced significantly as a result reflecting that only 7 schools

(1 Secondary and 6 Primary) remain as maintained schools. We anticipate that at least
3 of these schools will convert to academy in the coming 18 months.

Social Care Grant

The MTFS assumes that government will not reduce grant funding into Social Care.
The 2024/25 settlement confirmed a further £3.2m Social Care grant funding which
was combined with the continuation of the existing Social Care Support grant to give a
revised total of £13.25m. This funding is assumed as recurrent in the base budget with
no further increase included for 2025/26.

Adult Social Care Market Sustainability & Improvement Fund Grant

The Local Government Finance Settlement includes grant funding for 2024/25 of
£3.193m through the Market Sustainability & Improvement Fund Grant. This includes
the transfer in of the Workforce Fund grant which was paid separately in 2023/24.
Taken together this represents an increase of £0.374m. This funding is assumed as
recurrent in the base budget with no further increase included for 2025/26.

Adult Social Care Discharge Fund Grant

The 2024/25 Settlement included an increase in the ring-fenced Adult Social Care
Discharge Fund grant funding for 2024/25 of £0.458m taking the total grant for 2024/25
to £1.146m. This funding is assumed as recurrent in the base budget with no further
increase included for 2025/26.

Better Care Fund

The Better Care Fund is intended to incentivize the integration of health and social
care, requiring Integrated Care Boards (ICBs) and Local Authorities to pool budgets
and agree an integrated spending plan. Greater integration is seen as a potential way
to use resources more efficiently, by endtdigg B2ople to stay well, safe and independent
at home for longer and to provide the right care in the right place at the right time. The



Better Care Fund (BCF) is one of the government’s national vehicles for driving health
and social care integration.

The Council and ICB’s Better Care Fund has a minimum funding contribution of £15.7m
in 2024/25 a 5.66% uplift on 2023/24. The Strategy currently estimates that funding will
continue at current levels with inflationary uplift given annually to help fund the known
pressures on both the Council and the ICB.

. Council Tax

Comparison of 2024/25 Council Tax

The chart below shows how B&NES compares (4t lowest) to other South West
unitary authorities:

Band D Council Tax Charge - South West Unitaries 2024/25

(Note: Figures exclude Police, Fire and Parish Charges)

B&NES is 4th Lowest out of the 12 Unitaries; B&NES Band D Charge is £105below the average

2,500 A Bath & North East Somerset Average - SW Unitaries £1,841

£1,736 1

2,000 -

1,500 -

1,000 -

500 A

Swjp N S 8, B Wi . S Py A Tc C D, Brj,
don O Somg s erser & Nopy, mermoyy, Wshire  “Mth gy, Wmouy, "rage. sy Y My Grsﬂcomc/nﬂal
at Fast g, e Chﬁsﬂ‘hu Sfer:hj,e Mitarigg !
Tset che p
00/a

Council Tax collection fund

The MTFS factors in the positive 2023/24 actual Council Tax collection fund outturn
position of £0.37m which is released in the 2025/26 Budget. The one-off surplus will
be transferred to the financial planning earmarked reserve and held for the investment
in the core council customer and financial systems that are being modernised. This
forecast will be reviewed and updated to take account of the 2024/25 in year
performance of the Collection Fund as part of finalising the Council Tax base and
income forecasts for the 2025/26 budget.

Council Tax Precept

The current funding gap in the MTFS assumes a 1.99% increase in council tax in
2025/26 and future years. This assumes that the Government’s referendum principles
in respect of general Council Tax will allow increases of up to 2% in 2025/26 and future
years. In addition, the MTFS assumes that the Council tax base will grow with
incremental growth of 1% per annum from 2025/26 onwards and factors in the
additional income from the increased prggei®® charged on second homes as agreed
by Council in November 2023.



Adult Social Care Precept

The MTFS assumes that the Government will recognise the continued pressures facing
Adult Social Care (ASC) authorities, and continue to allow for a further 2% increase
per annum for 2025/26 and future years.

Financial Outlook

Currently the MTFS shows a balanced position in 2025/26 with projected budget gaps
in each year of the period covering 2026/27 to 2029/30 as follows:

Budget Planning

Future years assumptions £m

2025/26  2026/27  2027/28  2028/29  2029/30
Growth Requirement 18.95 12.59 12.05 12.49 11.99 68.07
Funding Increase 10.54 5.02 8.05 7.80 8.06 39.47
Annual Funding gap 8.41 7.57 4.00 4.69 3.93 28.60
Savings Proposals 8.41 244 1.16 1.33 ’ 0.00 13.34
Remaining Funding Gap 0.00 513 2.84 3.36 3.93 15.26

The funding gap over the medium term can be analysed further to identify additional
pressures on expenditure and the impact of funding reductions in income as follows:

Budget Growth vs Funding

20.00
18.00
16.00
14.00
12.00
10.00
8.00
6.00
4.00
2.00
0.00
2025/26 2026/27

B Growth Requirement

2027/28

M Funding Increase

2028/29

2029/30

Details of the current Growth Requirement and Savings Proposals are provided in

Appendix 2.

Page 34



Indicative Budget Forecast

The detail of the budget gap is shown in the table below and outlines additional cost
pressures and changes in funding:

Future years assumptions £m

Budget Planning 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28  2028/29  2029/30
Budget Requirement (Previous Year) 135.85 146.39 151.41 159.47 167.27
Budget Adjustments 3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Pay & Pension 5.80 3.37 3.31 3.39 3.48
Demographic Growth 2.70 3.24 3.39 3.51 3.52
Contract Inflation 2.35 2.36 2.34 237 2.38
New Homes Bonus Pressure 0.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capital Financing 1.93 1.29 1.57 1.57 1.00
Settlement grant funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Budget pressure / rebasing 2.84 2.33 1.44 1.65 1.61
Funding Requirement Sub Total 18.95 12.59 12.05 12.49 11.99
Draft Budget Before Savings 154.80 158.98 163.47 171.96 179.26
Proposed Savings Plans (8.41) (2.44) (1.16) (1.33) 0.00
Estimated Savings Required (0.00) (5.13) (2.84) (3.36) (3.93)
Savings Requirement Sub Total (8.41) (7.57) (4.00) (4.69) (3.93)
Budget Requirement 146.39 151.41 159.47 167.27 175.33

Funding of Budget Requirement

Council Tax 128.39 134.46 141.22 148.33 155.67
Business rates retention® 2542 17.55 18.24 18.94 19.65
Reserve transfers From 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Reserve transfers (To) (7.42) (0.60) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Funding of Budget Requirement Total 146.39 151.41 159.47 167.27 175.33

The forecast includes the following cost pressures and assumptions:

e Pay Inflation — Estimated 4.00% in 2025/26 and 3% thereafter.

e Council tax — General assumed at 1.99% and Adult Social Care precept 2% in
2025/26 and future years.

e Pension Costs — Have been revised in line with the current revaluation no increase
up to 2026/27.

e Demographic Growth & Increase in Service Volumes — Additional demand from
new placement and market pressures in Adult & Children Social Care;

e Interest Rates - Interest rate reductions to follow movement in Bank of England
base rate currently 5.00% for treasury management cash investments. The Council
will fix budget interest rates following the provisional settlement;

¢ Inflation — CPI projections modelled on current rates of 2% this will be refreshed
for the detailed budget proposal based on ONS data.

e Budget Pressures / Rebasing — 2025/26 budget rebasing will be informed
following the Q2 Council position where emerging pressures cannot be directly
mitigated.

e Capital Spending — an allowance has been made to fund previously agreed
provisional schemes requiring borrowing.

e Borrowing — longer term borrowing costs have been factored into the MTFS
however the authority will continue to optimise the use of cash balances subject to
market conditions and the overridinga{ﬁ?éaggo meet cash outflows;



e Reserves — The Council’'s earmarked reserves have been reviewed with new
allocations made for the implementation of the Being our Best programme and
transformation and system improvement projects.

10. Managing the Medium Term Financial Strategy

Current estimates are that £28.6m savings will now be required over the next five years
including savings already approved.

The strategy has outlined that the savings will be reviewed on a two-year rolling profile
which means that there is savings requirement of £15.98m, including the pre-approved
savings of £10.85m. Due to the budget impact of rising demand and inflation this puts
56% of the 5 year MTFS savings in 2025/26 and 2026/27 with £8.41m to deliver next
year.

Budget management plan

The following approach is recommended to create a robust plan of action, manage
change and balance the budget.

Budget Setting Principles

e New policy or service demand funding requirements need to be evidenced with
robust and realistic estimates for future years.

e For additional budget funding, un-avoidable growth only — other growth will
require a defined funding source / saving.

e New savings will need to be material and over £50k per item, savings below this
value will not be accepted (no use of one-off service reserves).

e The focus needs to be on high value strategic areas of change enabled by
Business Change delivering multiyear savings.

e Stop doing will need to demonstrate how risk is appropriately managed.

e Savings with reputational / political implications need early engagement with
Cabinet portfolio holders, with early, proportionate equality impact assessments
completed.

e Savings proposals will need to have a budget profile in line with delivery plans
that span multiple years.

e Delivery cost and timescale for implementation needs to be fully understood and
captured in the budget proposal.

To manage the strategy financially and over a longer term there will need to be cultural
changes to the way we approach budget planning to ensure a fully achievable set of
proposals can be taken forward from 2025/26 and across the life of the strategy.

The chart below show’s how the MTFS base case presented in this report may change
due to the ongoing uncertainty over future funding and risks with managing current
service demand and delivering savingspage 36



MTFS Budget Savings (Cumulative) - £m

45.00
40.00
35.00
30.00
25.00
20.00
15.00
10.00

5.00

0.00
2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30

Best Case e Base Case e\ Orst Case

Over the 5 year MTFS period the worst case scenario has a saving requirement of
£42.7m, £14.1m higher than the base case and the best case scenario has a savings
requirement of £21.3m, £7.3m lower than the base case.

The savings scale below shows how the range of savings requirement for 2025/26 may
change based on these risks:

£6.85m £8.41m £16.88m
Best Case Base Case Worst Case

The base case is based on the budget assumptions and figures in section 9 of this
report.

The worst case scenario builds in allowance for the following potential adverse
variations against the base case assumptions:
e Council Tax increases capped at 2.99% (1% lower than the base case) - £1.2m
¢ Rebasing risk allowance for 2024/25 unmitigated in year pressures - £5.4m
¢ 10% delivery risk allowance for 2025/26 savings and income proposals - £0.8m
¢ Risk allowance for lower government funding settlement in 2025/26 - £1m

The best case scenario builds in allowance for the following potential favourable
variations against the base case assumptions:
e Council Tax increases capped at 4.99% (1% higher than the base case) - £1.2m
¢ New Homes Bonus funding continues at current levels - £0.3m
¢ 100% Business Rate Pilot scheme continues for 3 more years instead of 1 more
year - £3.2m (pressure moved back from 2026/27 to 2028/29)

For financial planning purposes the base case is the most realistic assessment that
recognises that numbers may move between now and the end of December. In the
event that the local government funding position moves to the worst case the Council
will need to consider further mitigations from the revenue budget.

Page 37



11.Corporate Strategy and Council priority areas
The Medium Term Financial Strategy sets out the financial framework for allocating

resources across the Council. How this is achieved will require close alignment to the
Council’s Corporate Strategy as set out in the diagram below:

Empowered

A
o)
(9

)
%

Bath & North East
Somerset Council

o)
1
2

=
m
z
=

o

z

Improving People’s Lives

vfew

C FOR LOCA

Transparent

https://beta.bathnes.gov.uk/document-and-policy-library/corporate-strateqy-2023-
2027

Alignment to the strategy creates the “golden thread” which drives what we do ensuring
that setting budgets and managing our people - our most valuable resource - are
guided by the council’s priorities. It also means that our commitments are realistic and
achievable.

Prioritising and allocating resources

To address longer-term financial planning and ensure corporate priorities shape our
financial planning, for the 2026/27 and future years’ budgets we are developing a more
strategic approach built around:

¢ |dentification of key scenarios, particularly in the light of central government
fiscal policy and approach to local government funding

e Agreeing key priorities which will support delivery of our Corporate Strategy, in
the light of the resources available to the council over the medium term

e Establishing a longer-term approach to budget planning, including investing in
prevention to address budget pressures and reduce costs

Page 38


https://beta.bathnes.gov.uk/document-and-policy-library/corporate-strategy-2023-2027
https://beta.bathnes.gov.uk/document-and-policy-library/corporate-strategy-2023-2027

e Introducing a new operating model which delivers the council’s purpose
through innovation in our ways of working

An update on this work will be reported as part of the budget papers in February 2025,
with the new strategic approach to budget-setting being put in place beginning with the
2026/27 budget preparation process.

12. Capital Programme

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities was updated in
December 2021. The objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure that the capital
expenditure plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable and that
treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional
practice and in full understanding of the risks involved.

It requires authorities to assess capital expenditure and investment plans in the light
of overall organisational strategy and resources and ensure that decisions are made
with sufficient regard to the long-term financial implications and potential risks to the
authority.

The Council follows this approach through:

e Continuing to review all existing schemes to simplify, challenge deliverability and
put forward a more accurate funding and expenditure profile over multiple years;

¢ Minimising new schemes except those that meet corporate priorities;

e Agreeing an affordable limit for new schemes requiring corporate borrowing;

e Ensuring adequate investment in assets supporting key service provision
(including meeting health and safety requirements or replacing obsolete or
inefficient assets/equipment) and generate revenue savings for the council; and

e Delivering or working with partners to deliver high priority government funded
programmes and West of England programmes where they meet corporate
priorities.

The Capital Programme will retain the clear separation of schemes for Full Approval
and those which are for Provisional Approval.

Items gaining Full Approval are clear to proceed to full scheme implementation and
delivery, subject to appropriate project management and governance.

Items for Provisional Approval will require either a further Officer decision or in some
cases a formal Cabinet member decision for Full Approval. The budget estimates for
schemes shown for Provisional Approval are therefore included on an indicative basis,
and as an aid to planning.

The Capital Programme will retain narrative only reference to pipeline projects and
grant funding in early stage progression. These items will require further decision to
incorporate into the programme at a later date, in line with the delegations outlined in
the February Budget report.

The capital programme is aligned with the Community Infrastructure Levy allocations
agreed for the coming financial year.

The following shows the capital programme approved in February 2024 as part of
budget setting: Page 39



Capital Schemes for Approval

Cabinet Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Total
Portfolio: Capital | 2024/2025 | 2025/2026 | 2026/2027 | 2027/2028 | 2028/2029 £
1 ] 1 ] 1 ] 1 ] ] m

Schemes £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m

Resources 19.177 0 0 0 0 19.177
Economic &

Cultural 15.175 2.068 8.030 15.846 7.000 48.119
Sustainable

Development

Leader 0 0 0 0 0 0
Climate

Emergency & 1.948 0.247 0.032 0.008 0 2.235
Sustainable

Travel

Built Environment

& Sustainable 4.002 4.318 0 0 0 8.320
Development
Adult Services 1.800 1.441 1.442 1.442 1.442 7.567
Children’s 8.287 3.271 0 0 0 11.558
Services

Neighbourhood 5.167 0.257 0.020 0.020 0.02 5.484
Services

Highways 16.357 0 0 0 0 16.357
Total 71.913 11.602 9.524 17.316 8.462 118.817

Capital Schemes for Provisional Approval (Subiject to)
Cabinet Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Total
Portfolio: Capital | 2024/2025 | 2025/2026 | 2026/2027 | 2027/2028 | 2028/2029 £
1] 1 ] 1 ] 1 ] 1 ] m

Schemes £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m

Resources 8.893 4.500 4.500 5.500 5.500 28.893
Economic &

Cultural 11.309 17.452 14.038 12.605 4.550 59.954
Development

Leader 0.206 0 0 0 0 0.206
Climate

Emergency & 7.368 7.559 2.460 1.015 0.550 18.953
Sustainable

Travel

Built Environment

& Sustainable 14.359 21.478 8.105 0.382 0 44.324
Development

Adult Services 2.202 0.050 0.050 0.050 0.050 2.402
gh"d.re“ s 17.800 10.374 0.359 0 0 28.533

ervices

Neighbourhood 7.875 7.655 9.607 9.250 1.402 35.789
Services

Highways 11.024 10.027 8.997 8.997 9.122 48.167
Total 81.035 79.096 48.116 37.798 21.174 267.220

Page 40




Funded By

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

2024/2025 | 2025/2026 | 2026/2027 | 2027/2028 | 2028/2029 Total
Financing £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m
Grant 52.856 40.166 15.828 8.812 8.489 126.151
Capital
Receipts/RTB 11.183 0.994 1.000 0 0 13.177
Revenue 3.878 0.020 0.040 0.020 0.020 3.978
Borrowing 77.315 46.028 38.583 43.294 20.124 225.344
3rd  Party (inc
$106 & CIL) 7.717 3.490 2.189 2.987 1.003 17.386
Total 152.949 90.698 57.640 55.113 29.636 386.036

Note this does not include slippage from 2023/24 which totalled £17.4m.

An allocation of £1.4m revenue budget to support new schemes has been factored into
2025/26, this is fully committed to the schemes and maintenance programmes added
in the 2024/25 and previous years budgets. Any further capital investment requiring
funding from corporately supported borrowing will require either the reduction of
existing schemes or for the additional costs of borrowing to be incorporated in the
2025/26 and future years revenue budgets. The more detailed capital strategy will be
updated for approval as part of the budget in February 2025.

Capital receipts will be used flexibly on appropriate revenue expenditure and further
adjustments may be made as part of setting the budget for 2025/26 subject to any
revision to government guidance being published. The current programme will continue
to be reviewed to ease this financial impact.

The intention is to take a measured approach between borrowing in the current market
climate and the utilisation of internal cash flow wherever possible. Borrowing has been
factored into the strategy to ensure that the authority can meet its future borrowing
obligations. The decision on the timing of new borrowing will still be driven by market
factors, particularly movements in interest rates to provide overall value for money to
the Council.

New capital schemes will be considered on a priority basis to minimise the impact on
Council funded borrowing, and where appropriate maximise the use of external funding
including the application of grants.

Capital Risk Contingency

There are three levels of risk provision in relation to the capital programme.

e Individual major projects within the capital programme hold their own
contingency in accordance with good project management practise to
meet unavoidable and unforeseen costs;

e The 2024/25 capital programme included a funded corporate risk
contingency of £2.5m;

e The corporate risk assessment on which the general reserves target is
based includes an element in the context of the capital programme
based on the risks of the current programme.

As with all capital projects, relevant risks are being considered as part of the overall
risk-assessed general reserves and th&@@#@drate Risk Register.



11.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy

The Council is required to make revenue provision to repay capital spend that is
financed by borrowing (either supported or unsupported). This is called the Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP). The Department of Communities & Local Government has
issued regulations that require full Council to approve a MRP Policy in advance each
year, or if revisions are proposed during the year they should be put to the Council at
that time.

Earmarked and Non-Earmarked Reserves

Earmarked Reserves are set aside for specific purposes whereas Non-Earmarked
Reserves are retained to meet unforeseen risks. A regular review of financial risks to
assess the optimum levels of balances and reserves will be reported to members
annually. This ensures that the authority has sufficient funds to meet its key financial
risks. The strategy remains that balances remain at a level that covers these key risks.

To manage financial risk the Council holds £12.58m of unearmarked reserves.
The following table shows each of the key earmarked reserves held for financial

planning, the expected opening balance for 2025/26 and anticipated closing balance
after the projected use:

Estimated Proposed Current
Balance TrarF:sfers Projected Estimated
31/03/2025 Use in Year Balance
31/3/26
£'m £'m £m £m
Reve_nue Budget 288 0.50 0.00 3.38
Contingency
Financigl Planning and 477 0.37 0.69 4.45
Smoothing Reserve
Transformation 0.00 355 1.00 2.55
Investment Reserve
Job Evaluation & Pay 0.00 300 150 1.50
Structure Reserve
Restructuring & 188 0.00 1.88 0.00
Severance Reserve

Where earmarked reserves are used for budget setting purposes, balances will be
replenished over the 5-year planning period.

Flexible use of Capital receipts

The strategy requires flexibility around capitalising costs and the flexible use of capital
receipts to fund redundancy, transformation, and ICT costs where appropriate to free
up reserves.

The Council is taking forward the being our best programme that is reviewing and
implementing a new staffing structure, as a result of this programme there may be
redundancies, where a redundancy generates an ongoing budget saving flexible use
of capital receipts will be utilised. Page 42




12.Reviewing the Strategy
This strategy will naturally span the life of the Council Plan but will be reviewed annually
to take into account changes within and external to the organisation. In more uncertain
times the strategy will be reviewed more frequently.

13.Public/Stakeholder Engagement
We will be making more information available on our MTFS for stakeholder
engagement in November / December 2024, this will also be subject to scrutiny by the
Corporate Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel.
Subject to the timing of central Government funding announcements we hope to

engage on more detailed budget proposals in December / January including reporting
to Policy Development and Scrutiny.

14.Budget Setting Timetable

The diagram below sets out the budget planning timetable.

& “
> & &
& 2 Q e} ) G
S & S & £ & 3w
& S T2 & S 5 R Q >
3 & S 5§ 8 L £ &g &
& N < & S
S g Vs 0L 9 2 0 & O
L S ¥V £F §8 B &5 & 09°
N F s TE O 8 o & )
& K L &F v 8 §& & 5 $&
§§ L o8 sELS T EF 5 L
E5 £ EF TF 0L F L 5 &
| | | | | | |
Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
| 2024 ‘ 2025

15.Risks to the Medium Term Financial Strategy

The Strategy and Plan make regular risk predictions. The key risks to the plan are
currently seen as:

Risk Likelihood Impact Risk Management Update

Reinstated government | Low High This is certainly a material risk, whilst
restrictions in the event not one the Council has direct control
of new Covid variants. over, every step would be put in place

to follow government guidance
following the recommendations of our
Director of Public Health.




Operational budget
pressures due to rising
demand

Likely

High

There is the risk of unplanned and
unbudgeted growth in demand on
Council services, particularly in Adult &
Children’s Social Care.

Viability risk on the
Councils Commercial
Estate assets held for
income generation.

Possible

High

Current asset reviews have identified
that due to the age and complexity of
the Councils Commercial Estate, some
assets operating costs and capital
investment needs may exceed annual
rental income values. This will be
managed through a detailed asset
review that informs a programme of
prioritisation for investment in the
estate.

Contract inflationary
pressure

Possible

High

With increase in wage, energy and fuel
costs, Council contracted services are
at risk of above budget price increases.
This is an economic risk that has been
recognised in the budget with a
corporate risk contingency for potential
areas that cannot be mitigated through
activity management. Capital
Schemes may need to be paused due
to unfunded viability gaps due to
increased supply chain costs.

Impact on Reserves

Possible

High

Without additional government grant in
recognition of unfunded pressures
there is the risk that Council reserve
levels are not enough to manage in-
year and future years risk.

Interest rates increase

Possible

Medium

A reserve is available for borrowing to
manage market risk and long-term
borrowing costs have been factored
into the longer-term MTFS. The latest
forecast from our treasury
management advisors is that longer
term borrowing rates will remain
volatile within a relatively narrow
range with movements linked to the
likelihood of base rate reductions in
the US, the UK and the Eurozone.

and
around

Volatility
uncertainty
business rates

Likely

Pag

High

e d4

The impacts of the current economic
challenges will increase the volatility
and uncertainty around business rate
income. In 2024/25 this risk has been
partly offset by the extension of the
business rate relief scheme for Retalil,
Leisure and Hospitality businesses.

We continue to monitor arrears, CVAs,
and liquidations with a specific reserve
held to manage in-year volatility.




Capital projects not | Possible High The Council has a number of projects

delivered resulting in within this category. These risks will

revenue reversion costs continue to be monitored and reported.

or liabilities from An assessment is made as part of the

underwriting budget process to ensure that revenue

agreements reserves are sufficient to meet these
risks. The capital programme
methodology looks to de-risk projects
wherever possible.

Changes to | Likely High New government policy and funding

Government Policy that decisions that will become clearer

affects future funding following the Chancellor's October
Budget Statement are likely to have an
impact on resourcing of Council
services and priorities.

Funding pressures | Possible Medium | Ensure good communication links with

through WECA, ICB partner organisations.

and other partners

Capital receipts in the | Possible Medium | There is a risk that a depressed market

areas identified are will impact on current values, in the

insufficient to meet short to medium term the Council

target should not rely on capital receipts as a
key funding source.

The key risks will continue to be monitored throughout the budget setting process and
subsequently outlined in each budget setting report to Council and will be reviewed
regularly, and reported through budget monitoring to Cabinet.

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



/v abed

Appendix 2(i): 2025/26 - 2027/28 Savings and Income Generation Proposals

2025/26 - 2027/28 Savings and Income Generation Proposals

2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Savings Proposal Title Description Impacts to Service Deliver
gs Frop P £000 £000 £000 P v
Portfolio: Leader of the Council
Development and introduction of City A review of the current process and procedure is proposed to understand whether this can be streamlined into (30) Scheme to be developed to deliver outcomes. Increase reflects current
Centre Permit one City Centre Permit. inflationary pressures.
Leader of the Council Total (30) 0 0
Portfolio: Council Priorities and Delivery|
The Being Our Best programme is a planned review and rationalisation of our management and operating Service delivery risks will be closely monitored and managed at a
Being Our Best programme structures to best serve the authority. Senior management structures will be reviewed first, followed by Heads of (2,000) programme level to enable structural changes to be made without
Service and service leads. This may result also in savings. causing undue disruptions to the provision of our services.
Council Priorities and Delivery Total (2,000) 0 0
Portfolio: Resources
. . . This will introduce an improved management approach to specifying,
Review and upgrade the Council's approach to contract management through a phased multi-year programme of . . R
Contract management . (50) reprocuring and managing contracts to deliver greater value and
improvements. .
recurrent savings
Resources Total (50) 0 0
Portfolio: Economic and Cultural Sustainable Development
Business and Skills: recharge officer time [Provide Business and Skills services to employers through external grant funded activity only and reduce ) ) Flexibility to add additional services and support for local businesses will
to projects additional Council support. reduce and focus will be on external grant funded activity only
Heritage income - updated MTFS
projecfions P Net increases from 25/26 to reflect the latest Heritage Services Business Plan projections. (3,056) (635) (801) No impact to service delivery
- - . - - S . Assets may not be required any longer and can be rationalised to reduce
Corporate landlord: centralisation of Centralisation of our facilities management activity to generate efficiency savings in the management of Council- X L . .
s . - . X ) . (150) (20) running costs. Service impacts will be managed through the asset review
facilities management owned buildings, and growing income from construction/project delivery service. process
Corporate Estate reduction and rationalisation to reduce the revenue running costs including ener
Corporate Estate operating cost review P . R . L . e € gy (125) (200) (200) No impact to service delivery
consumption, consider investing in energy generation.
Income generation from new Potential income stream to Corporate Estates team from joint projects with Regeneration to unlock under used
8 . . P o ) pro} 8 (50) (50) (50) No impact to service delivery
regeneration assets assets and support with grant funded activities.
Bath Quays South lettings New lettings secured for Bath Quays South offices over and above previous financial projections. (400) No impact to service delivery
Economic and Cultural Sustainable Development Total (3,787) (911) (1,051)




8t abed

Appendix 2(i): 2025/26 - 2027/28 Savings and Income Generation Proposals

2025/26 - 2027/28 Savings and Income Generation Proposals

2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Savings Proposal Title Description Impacts to Service Deliver
ings Frop P £000 £000 £000 P ' v
Portfolio: Adult Services
Social care package review Review of care packages so that they match user needs in an affordable way. (50) Service user needs will be met by alternative provision
Commissioning Commission local services to match users needs in an affordable way. (75) Service user needs will be met by local provision
Review of Better Care Fund Improved Better Care Fund with enhanced allocation process whilst protecting social care expenditure. (50) No impact to service delivery
. . .. ; Impacts to service users will be reviewed, assessed, and where possible
Community Support Contracts Review and recommission community support contracts. (402) o o
mitigated through the recommissioning process
Procurement of new operator for RVP café, tennis, adventure golf, and event spaces (incl. ice rink) presents Improved service via contract including added benefits to our other
Royal Victoria Park leisure facilities R . p_ 8 s ( Ip (15) (20) _p " . . . . 8 5
opportunity to increase income. priorities. Project Officer time to deliver and monitor.
Commissioning Review of Community Review current provision during 2024-25 to inform future requirement for delivery of services via community (100) Commissioning input and programme support required to review current
Based Services partners arrangements and develop new models of care.
Commissioning input and systems improvement support required to
Consistent & Efficient processes Streamline commissioning processes to create efficiencies for managing demand for care across all age groups. (50) . & .p v P PP q
review and redesign current processes.
Service user and staff impact into proposals benchmarking with other
Target Operating Model Review current and future requirements within a TOM following in sourcing of Statutory and Social Services (50) councils P prop J
HCRG Care Group provider services Review the provider services - day services, shared lives and supported living. (100) (100) (50) Commissioning resource required to review current arrangements.
Commissioning and project support required to review current
Technology Improve our approach to using technology to reduce resource requirements. (50) (75) 8 proj PP q
arrangements and develop new approaches.
Adult Services Total (842) (295) (50)
Portfolio: Children's Services
Specialist commissioning Rebasing of contracts as part of the commissioning review. (500) This will not impact negatively on service delivery
Reprofiled transformation savings Remodelling of service delivery to increase in house provision. (540) (390) This will not impact negatively on service delivery
Reduce Children's Services discretionar Service users will need to be consulted where there are changes to
Y Reduce discretionary spending in areas including family support. (150) (150) _n 8
spend existing support
Residential Provision New Specialist Residential Unit. (450) This will not impact negatively on service delivery
Children's Services Total (1,190) (990) 0
Portfolio: Highways
Review of price and demand across all Highways Services, including Parking, Park and Ride, and Streetworks Minor impacts to manage changes to prices and deal with feedback from
Parking Services: income rebasing . P 8 v e e (60) (60) (60) P 8 8 P
services. customers
The proposed introduction of parking charges (based on vehicle
emissions) to MSN and Radstock, where parking is currently free of
Parking charge increases and Inflationary price rises, alongside the introduction of emission-based parking charges for all vehicles to all ) N . P 5 . Y
. 5 L . . . R N charge, to an equivalent level as those in Keynsham is proposed to
implementation of new emissions-based |locations in Bath (on and off street), Keynsham, Saltford, Midsomer Norton, and Radstock. Motorbikes will also (374) (180) . . N R i .
arking charges require valid permits in residential parking zones enable improvements in pedestrian safety through improved air quality
P J 8 q P P J : and reduced air pollution to the benefit of the most vulnerable
especially, whilst also encouraging turnover for shoppers and visitors.
Highways Total (434) (240) (60)
Portfolio: Neighbourhood Services
. . . . Increased range of services will be available to commercial fleet
Income from new fees and charges for  [Introduction of new chargeable services for commercial customers in our fleet workshop, and charge developers . - X A N
. R N R . (77) customers, and the initial provision of waste & recycling containers will
businesses for waste & recycling containers to be provided for each new build property. .
be charged to developers of new housing
Neighbourhood Services Total (77) 0 0
OVERALL SAVINGS AND INCOME GENERATION PROPOSALS (8,410) (2,436) (1,161)




61 abed

Appendix 2i

2025/26 - 2027/28 Budget Funding Requirements

2025/26 - 2027/28 Funding Proposals

2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Funding Title Description of Funding Requirement Portfolio Holder / Director Funding Funding Funding

£000 £000 £000
Portfolio: Leader of the Council
Pay Inflation Salary inflation estimated at 4% in 25/26, 3% from 26/27 onwards, and allowing for annual staff pay increments. Clir Kevin Guy / Various 20 15 15
Leader of the Council Total 20 15 15
Portfolio: Climate Emergency and Sustainable Travel
Contractual Inflation Annual increases in contract costs within the portfolio. Cllr Sarah Warren / Various 1 1 1
Pay Inflation Salary inflation estimated at 4% in 25/26, 3% from 26/27 onwards, and allowing for annual staff pay increments. Clir Sarah Warren / Various 49 37 36
Climate Emergency and Sustainable Travel Total 50 38 37
Portfolio: Council Priorities and Delivery
Pay Inflation Salary inflation estimated at 4% in 25/26, 3% from 26/27 onwards, and allowing for annual staff pay increments. Clir Dave Wood / Various 252 189 185
Council Priorities and Delivery Total 252 189 185
Portfolio: Resources
Reduction in Clean Air Zone Corporate Overheads Bring CAZ overheads into baseline budget - reducing the original £280k recharge income applied to the 23/24 budget. Clir Mark Elliot / Andy Rothery 85
Cloud IT Systems Migration Migration of all IT Systems to Microsoft Azure Cloud Infrastructure. Clir Mark Elliot / Andy Rothery (133) (76) (91)
New Recruitment System Replacement of iTrent recruitment system. Clir Mark Elliot / Andy Rothery (25)
Cyber Improvements Following on frf:m the Cybgr In\{est!'nent plan (£600k one-off investment over 2 years). In order to maintain Cyber improvements Clir Mark Elliot / Andy Rothery 30

there are ongoing revenue implications.

Corporate Budget Adjustments Corporate Base Budget Adjustments including Contingency allocation, Capital Financing, and New Homes Bonus. Clir Mark Elliot / Andy Rothery 9,950 4,567 5,048
Business Rate Revaluation and Inflation Increases Business Rate Revaluation and Inflation Increase on Corporate Properties. Clir Mark Elliot / Andy Rothery 4
Contractual Inflation Annual increases in contract costs within the portfolio. Clir Mark Elliot / Andy Rothery 288 243 243
Pay Inflation Salary inflation estimated at 4% in 25/26, 3% from 26/27 onwards, and allowing for annual staff pay increments. Clir Mark Elliot / Andy Rothery 472 362 355
Resources Total 10,671 5,096 5,555
Portfolio: Economic and Cultural Sustainable Development
Business Rate Revaluation and Inflation Increases Business Rate Revaluation and Inflation Increase on Corporate Properties. Clir Paul Roper / Various 39
Contractual Inflation Annual increases in contract costs within the portfolio. Clir Paul Roper / Various 32 32 32
Pay Inflation Salary inflation estimated at 4% in 25/26, 3% from 26/27 onwards, and allowing for annual staff pay increments. Clir Paul Roper / Various 112 84 82
Economic and Cultural Sustainable Development Total 183 116 114
Portfolio: Adult Services
Contractual Inflation Annual increases in contract costs within the portfolio. Clir Alison Born / Suzanne Westhead 1,316 1,343 1,343
Demography Growth in numbers of service users. Clir Alison Born / Suzanne Westhead 999 999 999
Pay Inflation Salary inflation estimated at 4% in 25/26, 3% from 26/27 onwards, and allowing for annual staff pay increments. Clir Alison Born / Suzanne Westhead 708 564 553
Adult Services Total 3,023 2,906 2,895
Portfolio: Children's Services
Corporate Overhead Rebasing Dedicated Schools Grant recovery phased over 3 years (£1m) from 2024/25 - 2026/27. ClIr Paul May / Mary Kearney-Knowles 333 333
Business Rate Revaluation and Inflation Increases Business Rate Revaluation and Inflation Increase on Corporate Properties. ClIr Paul May / Mary Kearney-Knowles 2
Contractual Inflation Annual increases in contract costs within the portfolio. ClIr Paul May / Mary Kearney-Knowles 446 461 478
Demography Growth in numbers of service users. ClIr Paul May / Mary Kearney-Knowles 1,408 1,639 1,038
Pay Inflation Salary inflation estimated at 4% in 25/26, 3% from 26/27 onwards, and allowing for annual staff pay increments. Clir Paul May / Various 744 558 547
Children's Services Total 2,933 2,991 2,063
Portfolio: Highways
Business Rate Revaluation and Inflation Increases Business Rate Revaluation and Inflation Increase on Corporate Properties (including car parks). Clir Manda Rigby / Chris Major 92
Contractual Inflation Annual increases in contract costs within the portfolio. Cllr Manda Rigby / Chris Major 155 158 160
Fees and Charges Income Annual increases in fees and charges income within the portfolio. Clir Manda Rigby / Chris Major (13) (14) (14)
Pay Inflation Salary inflation estimated at 4% in 25/26, 3% from 26/27 onwards, and allowing for annual staff pay increments. Clir Manda Rigby / Chris Major 264 198 194
Zf:;:::l(gjjzjsg:::;:}I::ngt::’::ii{j;z‘::’c';gr::em pazeealeonecriciey Income from Financial Assistance Scheme use by other Authorities, HGV Euro 6 charge and review of CAZ fee. Cllr Manda Rigby / Chris Major 24
Highways Total 522 342 340




0G abed

Appendix 2i

2025/26 - 2027/28 Budget Funding Requirements

2025/26 - 2027/28 Funding Proposals

2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Funding Title Description of Funding Requirement Portfolio Holder / Director Funding Funding Funding
£000 £000 £000
Portfolio: Neighbourhood Services
Business Rate Revaluation and Inflation Increases Business Rate Revaluation and Inflation Increase on Corporate Properties. ClIr Tim Ball / Various 26
Contractual Inflation Annual increases in contract costs within the portfolio. ClIr Tim Ball / Various 255 260 230
Fees and Charges Income Annual increases in fees and charges income within the portfolio. Clir Tim Ball / Various (107) (109) (110)
Pay Inflation Salary inflation estimated at 4% in 25/26, 3% from 26/27 onwards, and allowing for annual staff pay increments. Clir Tim Ball / Various 818 614 602
Neighbourhood Services Total 992 765 722
Portfolio: Built Environment and Sustainable Development
Land Charges His Majesty's Land Registry (HMLR) Project Statutory HMLR take over of LLC1 part of land charge search as part of national scheme. ClIr Matt McCabe / Chris Major 125
Contractual Inflation Annual increases in contract costs within the portfolio. Cllr Matt McCabe / Various 2 2 2
Fees and Charges Income Annual increases in fees and charges income within the portfolio. ClIr Matt McCabe / Various (20) (20) (20)
Pay Inflation Salary inflation estimated at 4% in 25/26, 3% from 26/27 onwards, and allowing for annual staff pay increments. ClIr Matt McCabe / Various 197 147 144
Built Environment and Sustainable Development Total 304 129 126
OVERALL FUNDING PROPOSALS 18,951 12,586 12,052




Bath & North East
Somerset Council

CORPORATE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL

This Forward Plan lists all the items coming to the Panel over the next few months.

Inevitably, some of the published information may change; Government guidance recognises that the plan is a best
assessment, at the time of publication, of anticipated decision making. The online Forward Plan is updated regularly and

-£an be seen on the Council’s website at:
&)
Q

®
ohttp://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1

The Forward Plan demonstrates the Council’'s commitment to openness and participation in decision making. It assists the

Panel in planning their input to policy formulation and development, and in reviewing the work of the Cabinet.

Should you wish to make representations, please contact the report author or, Democratic Services (). A formal agenda will

be issued 5 clear working days before the meeting.

Agenda papers can be inspected on the Council’s website.

0T wa}| epualby


http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1

Development
and Scrutiny
Panel

2024/25 Quarter 2 Monitoring Report

Gary Adams
Tel: 01225 477107

Ref Decision . Report Author .
Date Maker/s Ui Contact IR e
17TH SEPTEMBER 2024
17 Sep 2024 Corporate
Policy
gﬁ‘éeézemﬁ]nt Be Our Best (BOB) Update Cherry Bennett Dlrect(gh(;:‘anople &
y Tel: 01225 47 7203 9
Panel
12 Sep 2024 Cabinet
17 Sep 2024 C(I)Drgl?;;te Gary Adams, Andy Executive Director -
2025/26 Medium Term Financial Strategy Rothery
E3564 Development Tel: 01225 477107 Resources (S151)
and Scrutiny Tel: 01225 477103
Panel
i)
T%'H NOVEMBER 2024
™19 Nov 2024 Corporate
Policy

Executive Director -
Resources (S151)

28TH JANUARY 2025

25TH MARCH 2025

The Forward Plan is administered by DEMOCRATIC SERVICES:

Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk




	Agenda
	7 MINUTES
	9 2025/26 Medium Term Financial Strategy
	Appendix 1 MTFS Cabinet Report
	Appendix 2 MTFS
	Appendix 1 - Bath & North East Somerset – Medium Term Financial Strategy 2025/26 - 2029/30

	Appendix 2i - 2025-26 - 2027-28 Savings and Income Proposals
	Appendix 2ii - 2025-26 - 2027-28 Budget Funding Proposals

	10 Panel Workplan

